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The basic management principles of OSAKA Titanium technologies, Co., Ltd. (OTC)

are to act continuously as a company relevant to society and the economy, and 

to aim to maximize corporate value to shareholders by responding quickly to 

ever more diverse and sophisticated customer needs and always providing 

the most competitive products in the market.

Based on these principles, 

we strive to continuously grow our business and 

strengthen our revenue base by actively working on technical development and 

streamlining the production system, as well as by maintaining and improving 

the highest quality standards in the world and reducing costs across the board, 

while establishing a management system that responds precisely and 

rapidly to changes in the business environment.

Basic Business Principles
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Please be advised that this annual report includes not 
only factual statements on the Company’s past and 
present status, but also forward-looking statements 
about  the Company’s bus iness  and bus iness  
environments. Such forward-looking statements, 
which are assumptions or judgments based on the 
information available as of the date the report was 
prepared, involve known or unknown risks and 
uncertainties. Accordingly, actual results and business 
environments may di f fer material ly f rom those 
indicated by the forward-looking statements made in 
this report.

Safe Harbor Note on 
Forward-looking Statements
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With Titanium and Polycrystalline Silicon

Pursuing the Possibilities of Advanced Materials
With Titanium and Polycrystalline Silicon

Pursuing the Possibilities of Advanced Materials

OSAKA Titanium technologies, Co., Ltd. is committed to ongoing business growth 
and reinforcement of its revenue base through active development 
of global business opportunities, the securing of consistent supplies of raw materials 
from around the world, and the sale of products in both domestic and overseas markets, 
including the United States and Europe.

OSAKA Titanium technologies, Co., Ltd. is committed to ongoing business growth 
and reinforcement of its revenue base through active development 
of global business opportunities, the securing of consistent supplies of raw materials 
from around the world, and the sale of products in both domestic and overseas markets, 
including the United States and Europe.

Our predecessor, Osaka Titanium Co., Ltd., successfully industrialized titanium sponge manufacturing for the first time in Japan 
in 1952. This marked our first step as a pioneer in the titanium sponge industry. In 1960, the Company began producing 
polycrystalline silicon. Since then, we have provided high-purity, high-quality materials as a manufacturer of titanium sponge 
and polycrystalline silicon, mainly to the aerospace and electronics industries.
In recent years, titanium and polycrystalline silicon have been used to an increasing extent, including in aircraft designed to 

be better performing and more lightweight, in the growing number of plants producing LNG, which has been recognized as 
low-carbon form of energy, in large-scale power plants, in seawater desalination plants for which global demand is increasing 
to solve water resource issues, in semiconductors that support the electronics industry, and in digital home appliances and 
advanced medical devices that have become part of every aspect of daily life. In a range of areas from large-scale 
infrastructure to familiar consumer goods, titanium and polycrystalline silicon are about to realize their maximum potential.  
While responding to the increasing number of applications, We have also focused on the production and development of 
high-performance materials, new materials based on titanium sponge and polycrystalline silicon.
In order to bring about a safer, richer and faster society, we will continue to pursue the limitless possibilities of titanium and 

polycrystalline silicon as a top manufacturer that harnesses the respective strengths of these materials.

OTC has Expanded its Business Globally
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Bring out the best in people, 
and the company will be energized

My name is Yuichi Seki. I assumed the position of 
president on June18. Since joining OSAKA Titanium 
technologies, Co., Ltd. is in June 2012, I have closely 
observed the market t rends for t itan ium and 
polycrystal l ine si l icon, sales of which are st i l l 
adversely affected by a harsh business environment. 
However, our company does have “assets” which I 
would never t rade for anything. They are the 
achievements and manufacturing know-how that we 
have accumulated over 60-plus years, state-of-the-art 
equipment and, above all, our employees, who are 
ready, wil l ing and able to r ise to vir tually any 
challenge that might confront us.
  And, now is the time for us to make full use of these 
“assets” of which we are so proud and to establish 
una s sa i l ab le  pos i t ion s  i n  t he  t i t a n ium and  
polycrystalline silicon markets. 
I am acutely aware of my responsibilities in respect of 
this task and I pledge to shareholders that our entire 
company will cooperate to achieve that objective.

Message from the President
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The fundamental direction of the Japanese economy in 
fiscal 2013 was toward mild recovery, due to such 
factors as the continuing weakness of the yen on the 
back of the government’s economic policy and the easy 
money policy. However, future prospects for the 
economy have remained unclear because of such factors 
as increases in energy prices and concern about possible 
downturns in some overseas economies. 
In our titanium business, both production volume and 

sales declined from fiscal 2012 due to factors such as 
inventory adjustments by customers. 
Similarly, production and sales volumes in the 

polycrystalline silicon and high-performance materials 
businesses declined due to a fall in demand in the areas 
of semiconductors and liquid crystals.
In response to those circumstances, we decided to 

institute a company-wide program of measures aimed at 
enhancing profitability, such as improving various 
aspects of production and reducing fixed expenses. We 
also decided to concentrate production at one facility 
instead of  maintain ing the two-plant  s t ructure 
(Amagasaki Plant and Kishiwada Plant) in both the 
polycrystalline silicon business and the titanium melting 
business, in order to improve productivity and reduce 
fixed costs in an endeavor to secure stronger cost 
competitiveness.
As a result, we posted sales of 42,909 million yen, 

operating income of 1,182 million yen, and ordinary 
income of 327 million yen. As for profits and losses, we 
posted a net loss of 2,907 million yen, which was 
attributable to such factors as the extraordinary losses 
that we reported primarily in relation to business 
rest ructur ing associated with concentrat ion of  
production.

We successfully secured operating income in fiscal 2013 
despite being forced to make production adjustments 
due to a gap between supply and demand, and to deal 
with major profit decline factors such as drastic falls in 
production and sales volumes and climbing energy 
prices. Against this, we can point to a degree of success 
in our comprehensive implementation of rationalization 
measures and in resolv ing issues in re lat ion to 
production. While we take pride in being able to offer 
products of world-leading quality, we also recognize that 
there is still room for improvement in terms of costs. 
Hence, since fiscal 2012, we have held intensive 

discussions on measures such as medium-term cost 
rationalization and profit improvement. We have 
identified various target areas for rationalization. They 
include: improvement in production efficiency as 
illustrated by the measures we took for the titanium 
melting and the polycrystalline businesses, where we 
concentrated production into one facility from the 
two-plant structure involving Amagasaki and Kishiwada; 
internal utilization of surplus staff; improvements in 
various factors related to production and the unit 
comsumption; examination and tightening of capital 
investment; extension of equipment life; improvement of 
labor productivity at indirect departments, and so on. In 
light of the results already achieved, we are confident 
that we will attain our objectives. 
We will actively advance our efforts to rationalize 

costs across the board so that we can, in due course, add 
“cost competitiveness” to our strengths, in addition to the 
existing “high quality” and “stable supply capability.”

Streamlining of production systems is one example of the 
improvement plans among our rationalization measures. 
In the titanium melting business, we discontinued 
operation of the vacuum arc remelting furnaces and their 
anci l lary faci l i t ies  at  Kishiwada Plant ,  thereby 
concentrating production in one factory (Amagasaki 
Plant), instead of maintaining the two-plant system 
(Amagasaki and Kishiwada plants).
In the polycrystalline silicon business, we finally 

discontinued production at Amagasaki Plant, which had 
been suspended temporarily, concentrating production at 
Kishiwada Plant.
We also implemented production streamlining 

measures in the titanium sponge business, in that we 
totally suspended operation of the old small reducing 
furnaces while continuing to produce in a more 
concentrated manner  us ing new and advanced 
equipment with high production efficiency.
In addition to these measures for streamlining our 

production system, in fiscal 2013 we initiated a program 
aimed at enhancing our workplace strengths and, at 
production sites, for example, we have reinforced our 
initiatives for quality improvement, waste elimination, 
productivity enhancement, human resources development, 
and more. All of these activities were made possible by 
the originality and ingenuity brought to bear by each and 
every employee in every workplace. I fully believe that 
these initiatives will bear fruit in and after fiscal 2014.

Trend of Business Results

Measures for Rationalizing Costs

Streamlining of Production Systems and 
Actions for Enhancing Production-site Strengths

Summary for Fiscal 2013 (Year ended March 2014)
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While we expect that demand from aircraft manufacturers 
will remain robust, it appears that both inventory 
adjustments within the supply chain and use of scrap 
metals will continue in fiscal 2014. Consequently, the 
economic environment will continue to be harsh from a 
management perspective.
It seems that considerable time is required for overall 

demand from industry in general to recover, and it is likely 
that mill product manufacturers will continue to make 
inventory adjustments. Therefore, the environment for 
orders is also expected to be difficult.
In the polycrystalline silicon business, it is anticipated 

that  demand/supply adjustments  in  respect  of  
polycrystalline silicon for semiconductors will continue in 
fiscal 2014. Hence, a modest price reduction is taken into 
account in our forecast, on top of a sales volume decrease.
With regard to the high-performance materials business, 

we anticipate growth in sales volumes for high-purity 
titanium due to a recovery trend in the semiconductor 
industry, and for TILOP on the back of an expected 
increase in demand from the liquid crystals industry.
Given the business environment outlined above, we will 

take further steps to achieve cost rationalization.
Our business results projection based on the above 

forecasts will include sales of 42,000 million yen, operating 
income of 2,000 million yen, ordinary income of 2,200 
million yen, and net income of 1,900 million yen.

Over recent years, our company’s business results have 
been greatly influenced by economic fluctuations, which 
have been seen as potentially fatal for materials 
manufacturers. Boom-and ‒bust cycles have been repeated 
and it is not an exaggeration to say that our operations 

have simply been a series of pendulum swings between 
production increases and production curtailments. 
However, today’s conditions are different. Ongoing 
technological improvements and reductions in basic 
consumption units of materials for production, coupled 
with demand for lower costs, have brought about a global 
excess-supply s i tuat ion; a so-cal led “structural  
demand-supply imbalance.”
The single objective that our company aims to achieve in 

the current market environment is realization of “corporate 
management that ensures sustainable and stable growth.” 
The key to success for  us is  implementat ion of  
management measures which will even out the swings 
between booms and busts to the maximum extent. More 
specifically, we have to ensure consistent supply of 
high-quality products at stable prices. It is my belief that 
ongoing and unrelenting effort is the best ‒ indeed, the only 
- way to win customer confidence, and the surest path to 
“sustainable and stable growth.”

OTC is engaged in two areas of technological development.  
One area relates to the manufacturing divisions, such as 

those that produce titanium sponge and polycrystalline 
s i l i con ,  where  we are  endeavor ing  to  deve lop 
technologies in relation to quality enhancement, energy 
saving including suppression of power consumption, and 
to other aspects of manufacturing cost reduction.
The other area involves “market-oriented” development 

activities for technologies to investigate and analyze 
market trends and customer needs in order to convert 
their requirements into tangible forms.  
In the high-performance materials business, which is 

expected to be highly profitable, the market has recently 
been reacting sensitively to titanium powder and titanium 
alloy powder, raising our expectations of expansion in 
applications for high purity titanium, TILOP and SiO, with 
further use in the fields of medical equipment and aircraft 
parts taken into account.

Personnel working in sales divisions are required to have 
a high level of ability to collect and analyze information 
about market and customer trends and to make proposals 
indicating the direction in which our company should 
move forward. Similarly, those working in manufacturing 

Message from the President

Prospects and issues for Fiscal 2014 (year ending March 2015)

Projected Business Results

Approaches Toward Stable Growth

Future Direction of Technological Development

Ability of defining issues and setting goals

7



divisions need to be capable of correctly analyzing the 
phenomena currently observed and problems which have 
surfaced in order to identify solutions while implementing 
various improvement measures on-site. Just coping with a 
single phenomenon we are facing often fails to lead to its 
essential solution.
To conduct ongoing investigations and analyses, and 

devise measures to be taken based on the objective 
understanding of situation ‒ Once this “ability of defining 
issues and setting goals” functions correctly, solutions to 
problems will make their appearance by themselves.

One characteristic of our company is that we have 
people, including me, with markedly diverse backgrounds, 
endowing us with the potential to demonstrate impressive 
strength if those human resources are utilized effectively. 
To make that happen, we need to ensure that the 
company’s vision is fully shared by our people. Our 
near-future goal is “to become the world No.1 corporation 
in the areas of titanium and polycrystalline silicon.” But, 
while it is easy to talk about becoming the world No.1 
company, those words will come to nothing if we fail to 
gain the support, trust and respect of our customers. And, 
the “yardstick” for such rating is not sales volume or 
company size but rather product quality, pricing, market 
sha re ,  supply capabi l i t y,  response to customer 
requirements and the like.
“To live” has two meanings to me: One is “to simply live 
one’s life” and the other, which is the one I prefer, is “to 
energetically lead one’s life with strong will.” My wish is 
for a corporation or any organization to be an entity that 
makes it possible for its people to realize their potential, 
thereby helping us to maximize our abilities. Hopefully, 
our company, too, is an entity that is allowed by society 
and its shareholders to demonstrate its potential for great 
achievement.
While we are likely to face another year of harsh 

market conditions in fiscal 2014, OTC will strive to 
develop a business environment whereby our employees 
can demonstrate their strengths at a rate of 100%, or even 
120%. As the first step in our endeavors, we have 
formulated the following “top priority policies for the new 
management.”

We will highly value long-term partnerships with our 
customers and aim to grow by helping them  prosper.
We will exert ongoing efforts toward achieving 
“stable quality,”“stable supply” and “stable prices,” 
and will do our very best to achieve them.
We will apply our energies to creation of “safe” and 
“sound” workplaces, and we will work to coexist with 
society through establishment of relationships of trust 
with all stakeholders.

We are committed to working together to promote our 
business under these policies. And, we look forward to 
your ongoing support and goodwill.

Becoming the World No.1 Corporation

September 2014

President & Representative Director

１．

2.

3.
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Financial Highlights (Year ended March 2014)
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327million yen -2,907million yen

41,130million yen -78.99 yen

5 yen 0.3％  -6.8％

Operating
Income

Net Sales

Net IncomeOrdinary
Income*

*Ordinary income is the income resulting from the year’s recurring business activities, equal to the sum of operating income and
     nonoperating income minus nonoperating expenses.
**ROA(Ratio of Ordinary Income to Total Assets)/ROE(Ratio of Net Income to Shareholders’ Equity)

Net Income
Per share

Total Equity

ROA／ROE**Cash Dividends
Per Share

42,909million yen 1,182million yen
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OSAKA Titanium technologies’ Business

High-performance 
Materials 
Business

Polycrystalline 
Silicon 
Business

Titanium
Business

Titanium Sponge

Titanium Ingot

Titanium Powder

TILOPHigh-Purity Titanium

Metallic Silicon

Raw Materials for Titanium
Calcined Cokes

SiO

Polycrystalline Silicon

Lightweight, strong and rustproof, titanium boasts 
the full range of metallic properties needed by users 
to fulfill their aspirations and meet their needs. These 
characteristics render titanium ideal as a material for 
important machinery and facilities parts used under 
severe conditions, such as in aircraft and power and 
chemical plants.
The range of appl icat ions has expanded to 
encompass automotive parts, golf clubs, spectacle 
frames, accessories and other everyday products.
From the perspective of the environment ̶ an 
i nd i spensab le  fac to r  i n  the  21s t  cen tu r y  ̶ 

expectations of titanium as a lightweight material 
that delivers energy savings will continue to escalate.
We supply high-quality t itanium sponge and 
titanium ingots to mill product manufacturers. 
Although the production process requires advanced 
technologies and stringent quality controls, we are 
leveraging our unique technologies acquired over 
many years of operations to optimize titanium’s 
potential as a material.

Business Overview

OTC’s high-quality titanium sponge finds applications as a material used 
for important parts in aircraft and in power, chemical and other plants

Titanium Business

Liquid Crystal Televisions SiO Vapor-deposited Barrier FilmsImplants (Artificial Bones) (photo courtesy Nakashima Medical Co., Ltd.)

Aircraft Electrolysis Cells for Caustic Soda Production©AIRBUS Aircraft Engines ©Rolls-Royce

Personal Computers Smartphones Digital Cameras
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Mill Product
Manufacturers

Materials and
Fabricated
Product

Manufacturers

Monocrystalline 
Wafer 

Manufacturers

Semiconductor
Manufacturers

・Aircraft Manufacturers　・Plant Manufacturers　・Consumer Product ManufacturersProduct Manufacturers

・Digital Home Appliance Manufacturers　・Solar Cell Manufacturers, etc.

・Digital Home Appliance Manufacturers　・Personal Computer Manufacturers　・Mobile Telephone Manufacturers

Product Manufacturers

Product Manufacturers

Si l icon wafers  are used as substrates for  a l l  
semiconductors in products including personal 
computers, smartphones and digital cameras, and are 
indispensable materials in the electronics industry.
T h e s e  s i l i c o n  w a f e r s  a r e  p r o d u c e d  a t  
monocrystalline wafer manufacturers, and we produce 
and sell the super-high-purity polycrystalline silicon 

that serves as a raw material for monocrystalline 
silicon.
Since OTC began making polycrystalline silicon in 
1960, it has made successive improvements to its 
developmental technologies while maintaining the 
world’s top quality standards (11N=99.999999999%) 
for semiconductor-grade products.

We produce and sell high-performance materials such 
as high-purity titanium (a new application product for 
titanium sponge and polycrystalline silicon), SiO, 
TILOP (spherical titanium powder) and other types of 
titanium powder. In addition, we will deploy our 
substantial resources and develop this area as our 
third core business.

We will focus on fostering a 
third core business

OTC’s high-purity polycrystalline silicon 
is employed as a monocrystalline silicon raw material for silicon wafers

Polycrystalline Silicon Business

High-performance Materials Business

Liquid Crystal Televisions SiO Vapor-deposited Barrier FilmsImplants (Artificial Bones) (photo courtesy Nakashima Medical Co., Ltd.)

Aircraft Electrolysis Cells for Caustic Soda Production©AIRBUS Aircraft Engines ©Rolls-Royce

Personal Computers Smartphones Digital Cameras
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Aircraft (Boeing 787)©Boeing

Seawater Desalination Plant

Plate Heat Exchangers

photo courtesy Sasakura Engineering Co.,Ltd.

photo courtesy Alfa Laval Japan
13
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Titanium Sponge Titanium Ingot

While aircraft manufacturing business is expected to remain 
robust, inventory adjustments within the supply chain and 
increases in the use of scrap metals will continue. We also 
anticipate that it will take some time for overall demand 
from general industry to recover, and that our customers 
will continue to adjust inventories.
Sales for fiscal 2014 (year ending March 2015) are 

projected to be ¥24,900 million (0.3% increase over fiscal 
2013).

Overview of Fiscal 2013 (year ended March 2014)

Outlook for Fiscal 2014 (year ending March 2015)

With regard to export and aircraft industry demand, while 
aircraft manufacturing business remained robust, inventory 
adjustments within the supply chain became apparent in 
the latter half of 2012, and use of scrap metals continued. 
Domestically, inventory adjustments by customers 
continued, alongside overall weak demand from industry in 
general. As a result, we experienced drops in both export 
and domestic sales volumes. 
In response to the above circumstances, OTC began, in 

November 2013, further curtail ing titanium sponge 
production, which had been increasingly scaled back since 
July 2012. In line with this measure, we totally suspended 
operation of the oldest small reducing furnaces among our 
major production equipment while continuing to increase 
production through the larger furnaces. Due to their 
impairment, the small reducing furnaces were listed as idle 
assets, although their production capacity has been 
retained in anticipation of future recovery in demand.
In the titanium melting business, where we melt titanium 

sponge and produce titanium ingots, we decided to 
concentrate production at one facility (Amagasaki Plant), 
instead of maintaining the two-plant structure (Amagasaki 
Plant and Kishiwada Plant), in order to improve productivity 
and reduce fixed costs in an endeavor to cope with the 
drastic demand/supply imbalance.
Consequently, sales of our titanium business were 

¥24,823 million (28.3% down on fiscal 2012 result).

OTC’s titanium sponge finds a broad range 
of applications spanning the aerospace 
industry and general industrial applications. 
In particular, our titanium sponge for aircraft 
engine parts, referred to as premium grade, 
is manufactured under a very strict quality 
control system.

Excellent surface conditions and inner 
quality are the defining characteristics of our 
titanium ingots. These products are used in 
titanium plates and titanium tubes for large 
facilities such as thermal power plants, 
nuclear power plants, petrochemical plants 
and seawater desalination plants.

Sales Breakdown (year ended March 2014 )

Net Sales

Main Products

High-performance Materials
Business

Polycrystalline Silicon
Business

(Forecast)
2015/32013/3 2014/3

(Millions of Yen)

0
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24,82324,823

34,63734,637

24,90024,900

Titanium Sponge

Titanium Ingot

Titanium Business

57.8%
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Digital Cameras
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Reducing furnace Reducing furnace assembly process (seed rods)

It is anticipated that demand/supply adjustments in 
respect of polycrystalline silicon for semiconductors will 
continue. Hence, a modest price reduction is taken into 
account in our forecast, on top of a sales volume 
decrease.
We expect sales for fiscal 2014 (year ending March 
2015) to amount to ¥15,100 million (7.3% decrease 
from fiscal 2013).

Overview of Fiscal 2013 (year ended March 2014)

Outlook for Fiscal 2014 (year ending March 2015)

OTC’s production and sales volumes for polycrystalline 
silicon for semiconductors declined due to ongoing 
demand/supply  adjustments .  In  response,  we 
suspended production at the Amagasaki Plant in June 
2013 and finally discontinued it in September, based on 
a forecast that demand/supply adjustments would drag 
on, and we concentrated production of polycrystalline 
silicon at the new, advanced Kishiwada Plant. 
As a result, we successfully established a corporate 
structure whereby we could achieve improvements in 
productivity and in various other aspects of production, 
reduce fixed costs, and enjoy consistent profitability, 
even in harsh business conditions.
Consequently, sales in our polycrystalline silicon 
business amounted to ¥16,289 million (15.5% decrease 
from fiscal 2012).

OTC produces semiconductor grade 
“11N (eleven-nine)” polycrystalline 
silicon with 99.999999999% purity. 
T h i s  p r o d u c t  fi n d s  i t s  p r im a r y  
application as a monocrystalline silicon 
raw material used for semiconductor 
substrates.

Polycrystalline Silicon Business

2015/32013/3 2014/3
0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

16,28916,289
19,26919,269

15,10015,100

Polycrystalline Silicon

Titanium Business38.0%

Sales Breakdown (year ended March 2014 )

Net Sales

Main Products

(Forecast)

(Millions of Yen)

High-performance Materials
Business
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Personal Computers

SiO Vapor-deposited Barrier Films

Solar Panels
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High-Purity Titanium TILOP

Increases are anticipated in demand for high-purity 
titanium from the semiconductor industry and that for 
TILOP from the liquid crystals industry. 
Sales for fiscal 2014 (year ending March 2015) are 
expected to be ¥2,000 million (11.3% increase over 
fiscal 2013).

Overview of Fiscal 2013 (year ended March 2014)

Outlook for Fiscal 2014 (year ending March 2015)

Production and sales volumes declined, primarily due to 
TILOP used in the process for making liquid crystals. 
Consequently, sales for the high-performance 
materials business were ¥1,796 million (8.8% decrease 
from fiscal 2012).

2015/32013/3 2014/3
0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

1,7971,9701,970 2,0002,000

High-Purity Titanium

TILOP

SiO (powder)

Our high-purity titanium boasts purity of 
between 4N5 (99.995%) and 5N (99.999%). 
It is used as a raw material for sputtering 
high-purity titanium target materials that are 
e s s e n t i a l  f o r  t h e  p r o d u c t i o n  o f  
semiconductors.

We produce the spherical titanium powder 
“TILOP” using the gas atomization method 
industrialized by OTC for the first time in the 
world. This product has fewer impurities 
(such as oxygen) and a higher level of 
cleanliness than other products, and is used 
as a raw material for powder metallurgy 
process and sputtering target materials, etc.

Our h igh-qual i ty  s i l icon monoxide is  
produced by using vacuum technologies for 
titanium sponge manufacturing. In addition 
to using this product in food packaging and 
as a protective film deposition material for 
electrical and electronic components, we 
are investigating such applications as 
negative electrode materials for lithium-ion 
rechargeable batteries.

High-performance
Materials Business

4.2%

Polycrystalline Silicon
Business

Sales Breakdown (year ended March 2014 )

Net Sales

Main Products

(Forecast)

(Millions of Yen)

Titanium Business
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Market Data

 

 

Doors/door frames

Fuselage frame

Floor beam

Wing connections

Nacelle engine mounts

Thrust reversing units

Fuselage components

Seat rails

Components for
auxiliary power units

Metal fasteners
(bolts, nuts, rivets, etc.)

Areas Where Titanium Is Used in Aircraft (provided by RTI)
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Production volumes at both Boeing and Airbus 
remained at a very high level, exceeding 1,200 aircraft. 
The total order backlog for the two companies had 
increased to approximately 10,600 as of the end of 
December 2013,  an ext remely  large volume 
corresponding to total output for 8 years.
To respond to the robust order environment, Boeing 

and Airbus are both planning further increases in 
production for some models.
New Boeing and Airbus models - the B787, the A380 

and the A350, - consume more titanium in terms of 
both percentage and volume than their conventional 
models do because of the pursuit of aircraft weight 
reduction and improvement of comfort of their cabins.
Although demand for titanium sponge used for 

aircraft has declined due to inventory adjustments 
being made for titanium materials within the supply 
chain, a pattern of steady expansion is expected given 
that production increases are planned for both 
conventional and new models once such inventory 
adjustments are complete.

EnginesAirframes

Source: Based on our estimation (lead-time from titanium consumption to
            aircraft delivery assumed to be one year)
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(Tons)
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Demand for Commercial Aircraft

ForrecastActual

Forecast on Demand for Aircraft

Per Plane Usage of Titanium in Commercial-model Aircraft

Titanium Consumption for Commercial Aircraft 
‒ Estimated Actual Amounts and Forecast
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Consumption amounts do not include 
inventory adjustment transactions 
within the supply chain.

(Source: Boeing)

B：Boeing　A：Airbus
(Source: Compiled from data related to commercial aircraft)
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Titanium Business
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There are basically two types of polycrystalline silicon 
‒one is used in semiconductors and the other in solar 
cells. We specialize in manufacturing and selling 
polycrystalline silicon used in semiconductors.
Unlike the polycrystalline silicon used for solar cells, 
the polycrystalline silicon that OTC produces and 
sells requires not only super-high purity of 11N level 
(purity:99.999999999%), but also extremely strict 
qual i ty  control .  Therefore,  only a handful  of  
manufacturers in the world are able to produce this 
type of polycrystalline silicon. 
Although demand for semiconductors is gradually 
increasing, we expect that polycrystalline silicon 
supply capacity for semiconductors will exceed 
demand for a time.

(Year)

(Year)

Demand for semiconductors
Production capacity for semiconductors (Min.)
Production capacity for semiconductors (Max.)

08 09 10 11 12 13 14 2015

(Tons)

08 10 11 12 13 20151409

Demand for Polycrystalline Silicon
for Semiconductors

ForrecastActual

ForrecastActual

Actual Results and Forecasts for Global Silicon Wafer Shipments

Global Supply and Demand Balance 
for Polycrystalline Silicon (for Semiconductors) 
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Polycrystalline Silicon Business

(Million square inches)

(Source: SEMI, Company forecast)

(Source: Company forecast)
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Technology Development／Topics

For our major businesses such as titanium sponge and polycrystalline silicon, we are developing various 
technologies to further improve our unsurpassed quality standards and reinforce our price competitiveness. 
Especially for titanium raw materials, for which prices have recently increased substantially, we have established 
technologies to utilize inexpensive medium- to low-grade raw materials; the first time such an attempt has been 
made. We are also actively striving to develop operating technologies and equipment engineering techniques to 
achieve significant savings on energy and electricity, which account for a substantial portion of our 
manufacturing costs. In terms of quality, we are focusing more on dialogue with our customers and developing 
effective technologies that anticipate our customers’ ever-changing requirements.

Improving productivity and quality competitiveness in
titanium sponge and polycrystalline silicon

Prices for titanium raw materials have risen sharply in the last few 
years, and OTC has developed technologies for utilizing relatively 
inexpensive medium- to low-grade raw materials, as a drastic 
measure to address this problem. Specific issues included needs to 
reduce industrial waste generated through use of medium- to 
low-grade raw materials, which can amount to approximately 70%, 
and to achieve stable chlorinator operation. Accordingly, we have 
established technologies that facilitate selection and mixing of 
medium- to low-grade raw materials and that ensure stable 
chlorinator operation. Furthermore, we have conducted long-term 
evaluation tests on 100% use of medium- to low-grade raw materials, 
which would successfully expand the choice of raw materials, 
enabling optimum mixing of materials taking into account raw 
material costs and balanced procurement. Regarding our electrolysis 
equipment, which electrolyzes magnesium chloride generated in 
titanium sponge production into magnesium and chlorine, we are 
also endeavoring to realize energy conservation including 
power-saving through new approaches such as developing 
technologies to enlarge the size of the equipment.

We are developing technologies to reduce the rates at which we 
consume various resources including electricity by utilizing reaction 
analyses and simulation technologies in processes such as 
conversion, distillation and reduction. We recently succeeded in 
establishing a foothold enabling us to maintain even higher quality 
standards by finding mechanisms whereby trace metallic elements 
are absorbed by, or are desorbed from, the surface of polycrystalline 
silicon. Such phenomena were previously considered unavoidable in 
crushing and cleaning processes. We will continue to research quality 
improvement technologies to deal with greater integration in 
semiconductors and the larger diameters of wafers.

Technologies for utilizing medium- to low-grade materials 
and energy conservation in the electrolysis process in titanium sponge production

Technologies to realize high productivity and high quality in polycrystalline silicon

(FY)201220112010 2013 2014
PlanActual
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High-grade raw materials: Synthetic rutile, natural rutile,
                                         upgraded slag
Medium- to low-grade raw materials: Titanium slag

High-grade（Ti02 94～96%）
Medium- to low-grade（Ti02 90～92%）

Titanium Raw Materials Usage Ratio

Titanium Business

Polycrystalline Silicon Business

Super-high-quality polycrystalline silicon
and its surface condition
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High-purity titanium, SiO, TILOP and titanium powder in which our company’s titanium and polycrystalline silicon are 
used have significant potential and promise.
Capitalizing on our strength of “Excellence in Quality and Quality Control,” we are focusing our efforts on developing 
new applications and new products targeting growing markets such as semiconductors, liquid crystals, packaging for 
foodstuffs and lithium-ion rechargeable batteries.

High-performance Materials with Good Growth Potential

In addition to titanium sponge for mill products, we produce 
high-purity titanium. Our high-purity titanium, with purity levels 
of 4N5(99.995%)and 5N(99.999%), is mainly used for 
manufacturing high-purity titanium sputtering targets utilized in 
the semiconductor industry, such as for PCs.
As one of the few high-purity titanium manufacturers in the 
world, we will continuously develop our technologies and 
respond to demand for higher quality.

Action Initiatives for Increasing Production-site Strengths 
and Implementing Improvements

OTC has initiated “actions for increasing production-site strengths” and 
“actions for implementing improvements” as part of company-wide 
measures aimed at enhancing productivity and further reinforcing cost 
and quality competitiveness.
In fiscal 2013, the launch year for these initiatives, four out of some 80 
different activities were recognized with a President’s Award, either for 
having achieved remarkable results or for having brought about 
outstanding improvement effects through innovative thinking. The four 
awards were presented at our first assembly for presentation of 
outcomes and awards.

Membranes which are vapor-deposited with silicon monoxide 
(SiO) exhibit excellent barrier properties preventing the 
permeation of water vapor and oxygen. It is on this basis that 
SiO is used for making gas barrier packaging films.
Our high-quality SiO already has a proven track record as a 
barrier material for food packaging and commands the largest 
share of the industry market. The range of SiO usage is 
expanding to include products such as industrial packaging, 
where even greater barrier properties are required.
Dramatic growth is also expected in its use in negative 
electrodes of lithium-ion rechargeable batteries. We have 
pos i t ioned  S iO as  the  mos t  impor tan t  mate r i a l  fo r  
next-generation negative electrode materials. In order to 
commercialize SiO, we are undergoing assessments by our 
customers (battery manufacturers) and conducting research 
and development.

President’s Awards presentation assembly

Introduction to TILOPExpanding Applications of SiO

Achieving Further Improvements in the
Quality of High-Purity Titanium

Applications

End products

Target Materials
(for Semiconductors)

Target Materials
(for Liquid Crystals)

Packaging Materials
(for Foodstuffs)

Negative Electrode Materials
(for Lithium-ion Rechargeable Batteries)

Personal Computers Liquid Crystal Televisions Packaging Materials
for Medical Use and Foodstuffs

Smartphones

Topics

High-performance Materials Business

We manufacture two types of titanium powder: titanium 
hydride-dehydride powder and gas-atomized spherical titanium 
powder. Worldwide, only a few companies manufacture 
gas-atomized spherical titanium powder. We have developed our 
own technology for manufacturing this product, which is 
marketed under the trade name TILOP, primarily as target 
materials for liquid crystals.
In recent years, molding of titanium powder utilizing 3D 
printing technology has been attracting attention with 
applications envisaged in manufacture of medical equipment and 
aircraft parts. Our TILOP particles are so minute as to impart 
excellent properties for layered manufacturing. Currently, a 
number of universities, as well as domestic and overseas 
customers, are evaluating our TILOP using samples that we have 
provided. 
We will continue to work on technical development with a 
view to developing a wider variety of alloy powder compositions 
to satisfy various needs, and to further enhancement of 
productivity, along with cost reductions.

High-purity Titanium TILOP SiO
Block Powder

 GranulesProducts



OSAKA Titanium technologies Environmental Policy

ISO 14001 Certification
We promote environmental activities based 
on our basic environmental protection 
policies. We received ISO14001 certification 
at the Headquarters/Amagasaki Plant in 
1999 and at the Kishiwada Works in 2010.

Registry Number
JQA-EM0386

We have established and are working toward targets for 
al leviat ing environmental impacts aris ing out of our 
production activities. Measures include activities aimed at 
more effective energy utilization, waste reduction (based on 
the 3Rs: Reduce, Reuse and Recycle), and greenhouse gas 
emissions control.

Environmental Measures at the Production Stage

Environmental Preservation Activities

We consider environmental preservation to be one of the most important issues we face, and promote activities 
designed to reduce a wide range of environmental impacts, including preventing environmental contamination, 
energy conservation and the effective use of resources. We do so under the following policy:

Our major products, titanium sponge and polycrystalline 
silicon, are themselves materials that help preserve the 
global environment. By improving the fuel efficiency of 
aircraft, titanium contributes to energy savings.
In recent years, titanium has also been widely used for 

metal fasteners (bolts, nuts, rivets, etc.), seat rails and body 
frames in aircraft, as well as for aircraft engine parts. The 
latest aircraft models use more titanium than conventional 
models.
Titanium is utilized in power and chemical plants and as a 

high-durability construction material, and finds various other 
applications that utilize its unique proper ties to contribute to 
preserving the global environment.
Our 11N (purity: 99.999999999%) polycrystalline silicon is 

mainly used in semiconductor products and to help improve 
energy efficiency through various electronic devices.

Environmental Performance of Products

Environmental patrol 
(Headquarters/Amagasaki Plant)

Oil spill countermeasures training 
with neighboring companies 

(Headquarters/Amagasaki Plant)

3R

Reduce

RecycleReuse

■Make all employees aware of environmental impacts and undertake environmental preservation activities as 
    part of our company’s business operations
■Establish environmental goals and objectives, utilize energy effectively, reduce waste and promote recycling
    to make continuous improvements and prevent environmental contamination
■Comply with environmental laws, ordinances, regulations, agreements and other requirements, 
    establish self-management standards and follow environmental management procedures
■Perform environmental audits, review them periodically, and continuously improve environmental management 
    systems and environmental preservation activities
■Provide education and training for all employees so they understand basic concepts, prevent environmental 
    contamination, and improve their awareness and skills
    This also applies to personnel of affiliated companies who are stationed at our facilities.
■Contribute to local communities through environmental preservation activities

Our ISO14001 activit ies, which form the core of our 
environmental protection program, are an inseparable 
element of our production activities, and they are steadily 
producing results in conjunction with zero environmental 
accidents, which is our overriding concern.
We also recognize the importance of implementing 

environmental preservation activities to address global 
warming, waste issues, conservation of biological diversity, 
prevention of natural habitat loss and other matters, and we 
seek to contribute to the development of sustainable 
societies by, in addition to voluntary activities, supporting 
various environmental organizations.
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OTC aims to continue building its corporate value by 
streamlining its management and ensuring transparency 
and corporate soundness, while gaining the trust of and 
providing satisfaction to customers, shareholders, 
regional communities, employees and all other 
stakeholders.
As for the compliance system, the Compliance and 
Risk Management Committee has been established to 
implement management practices that comply with 
laws and social obligations, to take preventative 
measures for risks surrounding our businesses, and to 
make decisions and respond when incidents occur in a 
quick and appropriate manner.
The Board of Directors is made up of nine directors 
including one outside director and is responsible for 
maintaining and improving management efficiency and 
the enhancement of supervisory functions. We employ 
an Audit & Supervisory Board Member system and have 
an Audit & Supervisory Board comprising four Audit & 
Supervisory Board Members, three of whom are outside 
Audit & Supervisory Board Members. Each of the Audit 
& Supervisory Board Members execute their duties 
under this system.

In 2002, OTC established the Corporate Activity Rules, 
which state the commitment of our board members and 
employees to complying with the laws of all countries, 
international rules and their underlying philosophies. The 
Company has also established a Compliance and Risk 
Management Committee chaired by the president. The 
Committee monitors company-wide legal compliance and the 
corporate response to legal reforms.
We also set up a Compliance Helpline to gather constructive 
suggestions and opinions from officers and employees on 

compliance matters that may seriously affect confidence in 
OTC. Moreover, OTC publishes a Compliance Manual 
stipulating the basic policies to be observed by officers and 
employees.
In addition, OTC considers it imporant to appropriately 
manage the diverse risks inherent in our operations to 
continually maximize corporate value in the face of major 
changes in the operating environment.

Execution of Operations
Corporate Lawyer

Audit Office

General Shareholders Meeting

Compliance and Risk Management Committee
(Members: Directors, Audit & Supervisory Board Member, 
Director of Works, General Managers and Office Managers)

Headquarters/Amagasaki Plant

Kishiwada Works
Tokyo Office

Board of Directors
Directors: 9

(including 1 outside director) 

Audit & Supervisory Board
Auditors: 4

(including 3 outside auditors)

External Accounting Auditor

■Reinforcement of Health and Safety Management
　•OTC enhanced its health and safety policies
　•Board members and employees were informed of legal revisions.

■Reinforcement of Information Management Framework
　•We have revised the methodology for classifying information and are 
ensuring strict adherence to indication requirements.

　•We have ensured that access to electronic documents is restricted.

■Implementation of Information Security Measures
　•We carried out ongoing data leakage countermeasures.

■Business Continuity Plan Measures
　•Implementation of earthquake comprehensive disaster-preparedness 
drill as part of BCP

■Compliance and Human Rights Education Activities
　•We conducted position-specific educational programs targeting 
managers on promotion, employees on appointment and new recruits.

　•We raised awareness of and publicized the Compliance Help Line widely 
by issuing in-house bulletins.

　•Implementation of human rights seminars for officers and all employees

■Revision of the Risk Survey List
　•We conducted regular reviews of the Risk Survey List, which is compiled 
by each division.

　•Identification status of risks, current important issues, and future 
response schedules were included.

■Compliance Training
　Theme: Mental Health
　Speaker: Company occupational physician
　Target: Officers, managers and executives

■Meetings of the Compliance and Risk Management Committee
　１．Policies
　•Monitor the status of legal compliance and of each division’s reporting 
activities based on the Risk Survey List.

　２．Agenda
　•Overall examination of management risks
　•Promoting activities based on BCP (Business Continuity Plan)
　•Sharing information on legal revisions based on a list of laws relevant to 
our company

Corporate Governance

Compliance/Risk Management

Compliance and Risk Management Efforts for Fiscal 2013

Conceptual Diagram of Business Management and Auditing System

Appointments
and dismissals

Appointments
and dismissals

Appointments
and dismissals

Risk-related information
Monitoring

Reports and
proposals

Resolutions and
supervision

Proposals

Deliberation Audits

Advice

Reports Audits

Audits

Accounting
audit

Collaboration

Management Conference,
etc.
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Board of Directors (as of June 18, 2014)

Executive Vice President &
Representative Director

Fumio Otaguro

Senior Managing Director

Takahisa Miyake
Senior Managing Director

Mitsuo Takamura

Audit &
Supervisory Board Member

Masaru Itajiki

Outside Audit &
Supervisory Board Member

Machi Nakata

Outside Audit &
Supervisory Board Member

Yasushi Tsushima

Outside Audit &
Supervisory Board Member

Fumio Sugizaki

Managing Director

Yoshiki Morishita

Outside Director

Akira Takamatsu

Managing Director

Yoichi Aminaga
Managing Director

Masato Ichise
Managing Director

Tsuneaki Nishikawa

Directors

Auditors

President &
Representative Director

Yuichi Seki
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Balance Sheet
March 31, 2014

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Trade notes
Trade accounts (Notes 5 and 14)
Others (Note 14)
Allowance for doubtful receivables

Inventories (Note 4)
Deferred tax assets (Note 9)
Prepaid expenses and other  

Total current assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Land
Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment (Note 12)
Furniture and fixtures
Construction in progress

Total
Accumulated depreciation

Net property, plant and equipment

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities (Note 3)
Deferred tax assets (Note 9)
Prepaid pension cost (Note 6)
Other assets

Total investments and other assets

TOTAL

See notes to financial statements.

¥          929

 14,617
 982

(3)
 25,435
 1,217
 1,059

44,236

 16,040
 23,473
 98,442
 1,332
 1,111

 140,398
(77,769)
62,629

 275
 779
 784
 1,518

3,356

¥   110,221

$         9,019

 141,913
 9,534

(29)
 246,942
 11,816
 10,281

429,476

 155,728
 227,893
 955,748
 12,932
 10,786

1,363,087
(755,039)
608,048

 2,670
 7,563
 7,611
 14,739

32,583

$  1,070,107

¥       3,422

 2
 19,359

 32
(3)

 27,764
 505
 999

52,080

 16,279
 24,163
 114,672
 1,338
 987

 157,439
(85,068)
72,371

254
495
806
1,443
2,998

¥   127,449

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Short-term bank loans (Note 5)
Payables:
Trade notes
Trade accounts
Construction
Others

Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses
Provision for business restructuring expenses (Note 11)
Provision for loss on practice of purchase commitments
Current portion of lease obligations (Note 12)
Other 

Total current liabilities
       
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (Note 5)
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 6)
Long-term lease obligations (Note 12)
Provision for business restructuring expenses (Note 11)
Asset retirement obligations (Note 7)
Other 

Total long-term liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Notes 12 and 13)

EQUITY (Note 8):
Common stock, authorized, 125,760,000 shares; issued, 
 36,800,000 shares in 2014 and 2013
Capital surplus - Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings:
Legal reserve
Unappropriated

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities (Note 9)
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting (Note 9)
Treasury stock - at cost:1,194 shares in 2014 and 2013

Total equity

TOTAL

$     138,835

 2,146
 28,252
 13,097
 5,553
 301
 5,777
 1,505
 3,417
 19
 855
199,757

 436,893
 14,990

 29
 6,311
 12,359
 447
471,029

84,854
 86,825

 369
226,904

 1,000
(534)

 (97)
399,321

$  1,070,107

¥     14,300

221
2,910
1,349
572
31
595
155
352
2
88

20,575

 45,000
 1,544

 3
 650
 1,273
 46
48,516

8,740
 8,943

 38
 23,371
 103
 (55)
 (10)
41,130

¥   110,221

¥     32,350

384
6,511
834
249
1,308
750

1,417
226

44,029

36,500
1,417

5

1,246
123

39,291

8,740
8,943

38
26,462

89
(133)
(10)

44,129

¥   127,449

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
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Statement of Operations
Year Ended March 31, 2014

NET SALES (Note 14)

COST OF SALES
Gross profit

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Note 10)
Operating income

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES): 
Interest and dividend income
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange gain - net
Business restructuring expenses (Note 11)
Depreciation of idle assets
Loss on contract settlement
Provision for loss on practice of purchase commitments
Syndicate loan fee
Other - net 

Other expenses - net

(LOSS) INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAXES (Note 9):
Current
Deferred

Total income taxes
NET (LOSS) INCOME

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK:
Basic net (loss) income
Cash dividends applicable to the year

See notes to financial statements. 

¥     42,909

36,538
6,371

5,189
1,182

 2
(511)
(305)
412

(3,956)
(237)
(273)
(352)
(98)

 202
(5,116)

(3,934)

28
(1,055)
(1,027)

¥     (2,907)

¥     (78.99)
5.00

$   416,592

 354,738
61,854

 50,378
11,476

19
(4,961)
(2,961)
4,000

(38,408)
(2,301)
(2,650)
(3,417)
(951)
1,960

(49,670)

(38,194)

 272
(10,243)
(9,971)

$     (28,223)

$ (0.77)
 0.05

¥     55,876

45,908
9,968

5,859
4,109

 3
(578)
(188)

 236

 (24)

 (4)
 184

(371)

 3,738

 1,271
 392

1,663
¥       2,075

¥       56.39
 20.00

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

20132014
Yen Yen

2014
U.S. Dollars
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NET SALES (Note 14)

COST OF SALES
Gross profit

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Note 10)
Operating income

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES): 
Interest and dividend income
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange gain - net
Business restructuring expenses (Note 11)
Depreciation of idle assets
Loss on contract settlement
Provision for loss on practice of purchase commitments
Syndicate loan fee
Other - net 

Other expenses - net

(LOSS) INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAXES (Note 9):
Current
Deferred

Total income taxes
NET (LOSS) INCOME

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK:
Basic net (loss) income
Cash dividends applicable to the year

See notes to financial statements. 

¥     42,909

36,538
6,371

5,189
1,182

 2
(511)
(305)
412

(3,956)
(237)
(273)
(352)
(98)

 202
(5,116)

(3,934)

28
(1,055)
(1,027)

¥     (2,907)

¥     (78.99)
5.00

$   416,592

 354,738
61,854

 50,378
11,476

19
(4,961)
(2,961)
4,000

(38,408)
(2,301)
(2,650)
(3,417)
(951)
1,960

(49,670)

(38,194)

 272
(10,243)
(9,971)

$     (28,223)

$ (0.77)
 0.05

¥     55,876

45,908
9,968

5,859
4,109

 3
(578)
(188)

 236

 (24)

 (4)
 184

(371)

 3,738

 1,271
 392

1,663
¥       2,075

¥       56.39
 20.00

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

20132014
Yen Yen

2014
U.S. Dollars
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Statement of 
Changes in Equity
Year Ended March 31, 2014

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2012

Net income
Cash dividends, ¥35 per share
Net change in the year

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2013

Net loss
Cash dividends, ¥20 per share
Net change in the year

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2014

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2013

Net loss
Cash dividends, $0.19 per share
Net change in the year 

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2014

See notes to financial statements.

¥  8,943

8,943

¥  8,943

¥  8,740

8,740

¥  8,740

36,798,806

36,798,806

36,798,806

$  86,825

$  86,825

$  84,854

$  84,854

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Millions of YenThousands
Capital Surplus

Outstanding Number of
Shares of

Common Stock
Common
Stock

Additional Paid-in
Capital

Capital Surplus

Common
Stock

Additional Paid-in
Capital
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¥  113

(24)

89

14
¥  103

¥  25,674

2,075
(1,287)

 26,462

(2,907)
 (184)

¥  23,371

¥  38

38

¥  38

¥  43,299

2,075
 (1,287)

 42
 
44,129

 (2,907)
 (184)
 92
¥  41,130

¥  (10)

(10)

¥  (10)

¥  (199)

66

(133)

78
¥  (55)

$   864

136
$   1,000

$   256,913

(28,223)
(1,786)

$   226,904

$   369

$   369

$   428,437

(28,223)
(1,786)
893

$   399,321

$  (97)

$   (97)

$   (1,291)

757
$   (534)

Millions of Yen

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Retained Earnings

Unrealized Gain
on Available-for-
sale Securities

Deferred Loss on
Derivatives under
Hedge AccountingLegal Reserve

Treasury
Stock Total EquityUnappropriated

Retained Earnings

Unrealized Gain
on Available-for-
sale Securities

Deferred Loss on
Derivatives under
Hedge AccountingLegal Reserve

Treasury
Stock Total EquityUnappropriated

32



Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended March 31, 2014

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
(Loss)Income before income taxes 
Adjustments for:
Income taxes - paid
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Business restructuring expenses
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in trade accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease in payables - trade
Increase in liability for retirement benefits
Increase in provision for business restructuring expenses
Increase in provision for loss on practice of purchase commitments

Other - net
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Other

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayments of short-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt
Repayments of lease obligations
Dividends paid

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS
 ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES - 
Liabilities increased by applying the accounting
 standard for asset retirement obligations

See notes to financial statements.

¥     (3,934)

 (1,304)
 9,043
 305
 2,698

 4,745
 2,329

(3,764)
 150
 805
 352

(317)
15,042
11,108

(2,240)
(121)
(2,361)

18,500
(8,600)
(19,450)
(1,417)
(188)

(11,155)

(85)
(2,493)
3,422

¥         929

 ¥           27

$      (38,194)

(12,660)
 87,796
 2,961
 26,194

 46,068
 22,612

(36,544)
 1,456
 7,816
 3,417

(3,077)
146,039
107,845

(21,748)
(1,174)
(22,922)

179,611
(83,495)
(188,835)
(13,757)
(1,825)

(108,301)

(826)
(24,204)
33,223

$         9,019

$            252

¥     3,738

(18)
13,220
188

962
(12,355)
(171)
112

(494)
1,444
5,182

(6,509)
(604)
(7,113)

26,500
(3,900)
(19,500)
(1,098)
(1,278)
724

104
(1,103)
4,525

¥     3,422

¥         26

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

more familiar to readers outside Japan.  In addition, 
certain reclassifications have been made in the 2013 
financial statements to conform to the classifications 
used in 2014.
The financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, 
the currency of the country in which the Company is 
incorporated and operates.  The translations of 
Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are 
included solely for the convenience of readers outside 
Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥103 to $1, 
the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2014.  
Such translat ions should not be construed as 
representations that the Japanese yen amounts could 
be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

The accompanying financial statements have been 
prepared from the accounts maintained by OSAKA 
Titanium technologies Co., Ltd. (the "Company") in 
accordance with the provisions set forth in the 
Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and 
its related accounting regulations and in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, 
which are different in certain respects as to the 
app l i ca t ion  and d i sc losure  requ i rements  o f  
International Financial Reporting Standards.  
In preparing these financial statements, certain 
reclassifications and rearrangements have been made 
to the Company's financial  statements issued 
domestically in order to present them in a form that is 

Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are 
stated at cost determined by the moving-average 
method.  For other-than-temporary declines in fair 
value, investment securities are reduced to net 
realizable value by a charge to income.

e.  Property, Plant and Equipment -  Property, plant 
and equipment are stated at cost.  Depreciation 
(including lease assets that are deemed to transfer 
ownership) is computed by the declining-balance 
method, while the straight-line method is applied 
to buildings acquired after April 1, 1998 and 
machinery and equipment of the polycrystalline 
silicon production factory in Kishiwada.  Estimated 
useful life and salvage value is based on Japanese 
Corporate Tax Law except for the estimated useful 
life of polycrystalline silicon manufacturing facilities 
which is 12 years.  Lease assets that are not 
deemed to transfer ownership are depreciated by 
the straight-line method over the respective lease 
period.
Prior to April 1, 2013, the estimated useful life of 

polycrystalline silicon manufacturing facilities 
(machinery and equipment) was seven years.  
Effective the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, the 
estimate was changed to 12 years as a result of 
reassessing the physical useful life of the entire 

a.  Non-consolidation -  The financial statements do 
not include the accounts of subsidiaries because 
the Company does not have any subsidiaries.

b.  Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents are short-term 
investments that are readily convertible into cash 
and that are exposed to insignificant risk of 
changes in value.  Cash equivalents include time 
deposits, certificate of deposits, commercial paper 
and bond funds, all of which mature or become 
due within three months of the date of acquisition.

c.  Inventories -  Inventories held for sale in the 
ordinary course of business are measured at the 
lower of cost or net selling value, which is defined 
as the selling price less additional estimated 
manufacturing costs and estimated direct selling 
expenses.  Replacement cost may be used in place 
of net selling value, if appropriate. 

 
d. Investment Securities - All marketable securities 
h e l d  b y  t h e  Compan y  a r e  c l a s s i fi e d  a s  
available-for-sale securities and are reported at fair 
value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of 
app l i cab le  taxes ,  repor ted  in  a  separa te  
component of equity.  The cost of securities sold is 
determined by the moving-average method. 

 2.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

j.  Liability for Retirement Benefits - Employees who 
retire at or after age 60 are entitled to their 
benefits in the form of an annuity and a severance 
lump-sum payment.  The funds for the annuity 
payments are entrusted to an outside trustee.
The Company accounts for the prepaid pension 

cost and the liability for retirement benefits based 
on projected benefit obligations and plan assets at 
the balance sheet date.

k. Asset Retirement Obligations - In March 2008, the 
Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) 
i ssued the  account ing  s tandard for  asset  
retirement obligations, ASBJ Statement No. 18 
"Accounting Standard for Asset Ret irement 
Obligations" and ASBJ Guidance No. 21 "Guidance 
on Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement 
Obligations."  Under this accounting standard, an 
asset retirement obligation is defined as a legal 
obligation imposed either by law or contract that 
results  f rom the acquis i t ion,  construct ion,  
development and the normal operation of a 
tangible fixed asset and is associated with the 
retirement of such tangible fixed asset.  The asset 
retirement obligation is recognized as the sum of 
the discounted cash flows required for the future 
asset retirement and is recorded in the period in 
which the obligation is incurred if a reasonable 
estimate can be made.  If a reasonable estimate of 
the asset retirement obligation cannot be made in 
the period the asset retirement obligation is 
incurred, the liability should be recognized when a 
reasonable estimate of the asset retirement 
obligation can be made.  Upon initial recognition 
of a liability for an asset retirement obligation, an 
asset retirement cost is capitalized by increasing 
the carrying amount of the related fixed asset by 
the amount of the liability.  The asset retirement 
cost is subsequently allocated to expense through 
depreciation over the remaining useful life of the 
asset.  Over time, the liability is accreted to its 
present value each period.  Any subsequent 
revisions to the timing or the amount of the original 
estimate of undiscounted cash flows are reflected 
as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the 
liability and the capitalized amount of the related 
asset retirement cost.

manufacturing facilities as part of the large-scale 
investment to increase production capacity of the 
factory in Kishiwada.  The new estimated useful life 
for machinery and equipment was prospectively 
applied.  Due to the change of the useful life, gross 
profit  for  the year  ended March 31 ,  2014 
increased by ¥1,599 million ($15,524 thousand), 
operating income increased by ¥1,622 million 
($15,748 thousand) and loss before income taxes 
decreased by ¥1,622 million ($15,748 thousand).

f.  Long-lived Assets - The Company reviews its 
long-lived assets for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstance indicate the carrying 
amount of an asset or asset group may not be 
recoverable.  An impairment loss would be 
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or 
asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted 
future cash flows expected to result from the 
continued use and eventual disposition of the 
asset or asset group.  The impairment loss would 
be measured as the amount by which the carrying 
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash 
flows from the continued use and eventual 
disposition of the asset or the net selling price at 
disposition.

g.  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - The allowance 
for doubtful  accounts is stated in amounts 
considered to be appropriate based on the 
companies' past credit loss experience and an 
evaluation of potential losses in the receivables 
outstanding.

h.  Provision for Loss on Practice of Purchase 
Commitments - Provision for loss on practice of 
purchase commitments is stated in amounts 
considered to be appropriate based on the 
estimated future loss arising from declining in 
profitability of raw materials.

i.  Provision for Business Restructuring Expenses - 
Provision for business restructuring expenses is 
stated in amounts considered to be appropriate 
based on the estimated future loss in connection 
with business restructuring.
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and interest-rate swaps are ut i l ized by the 
Company to reduce foreign currency exchange and 
interest rate risks.  The Company does not enter 
into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.
Derivative financial instruments are classified and 

accounted for as follows:  a) all derivatives are 
recognized as either assets or liabilities and 
measured at fair value, and gains or losses on 
derivative transactions are recognized in the 
income statement and b) for derivatives used for 
hedging purposes, if derivatives qualify for hedge 
accounting because of high correlation and 
effectiveness between the hedging instruments and 
the hedged items, gains or losses on derivatives 
are defer red unt i l  matur i ty  o f  the hedged 
transactions.
The foreign currency forward contracts are 

utilized to hedge foreign currency exposures in 
procurement of raw materials from overseas 
suppliers.  Trade payables denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the contracted rates if 
the forward contracts qualify for hedge accounting.
Interest-rate swaps are utilized to hedge interest 

rate exposures of long-term debt.  These swaps 
that qualify for hedge accounting are measured at 
market value at the balance sheet date, and the 
unrealized gains or losses are deferred until 
maturity as deferred gain (loss) under hedge 
accounting in a separate component of equity.

l.  Research and Development Costs - Research and 
development costs are charged to income as 
incurred.

m.  Leases - In March 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ 
Statement No. 13, "Accounting Standard for Lease 
Transact ions , "  which rev ised the prev ious 
accounting standard for lease transactions.  The 
revised accounting standard for lease transactions 
was effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 
April 1, 2008.
Under the previous accounting standard, finance 

leases that were deemed to transfer ownership of 
the leased property to the lessee were capitalized.  
However, other finance leases were permitted to 
be accounted for as operating lease transactions if 
certain "as if capitalized" information was disclosed 
in the notes to the lessee's financial statements.  
The revised accounting standard requires that all 
finance lease transactions be capitalized by 
recognizing lease assets and lease obligations in 
the balance sheet.

n.  Income Taxes - The provision for income taxes is 
computed based on the pretax income included in 
the statements of operations.  The asset and 
liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax 
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax 
consequences of temporary differences between 
the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities.  Deferred taxes are measured by 
applying currently enacted income tax rates to the 
temporary differences.

o.  Foreign Currency Transactions - All short-term and 
long-term monetary receivables and payables 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated 
into Japanese yen at the exchange rates at the 
balance sheet date.  The foreign exchange gains 
and losses from translation are recognized in the 
statement of operations to the extent that they are 
not hedged by forward exchange contracts.

p.  Derivatives and Hedging Activities - The Company 
uses derivative financial instruments to manage its 
exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange and 
interest rates.  Foreign exchange forward contracts 
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

q.  Per Share Information - Basic net income (loss) per 
share is computed by dividing net income (loss) 
ava i lable to common shareholders  by the 
weighted-average number of common shares 
outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted 
for stock splits.
The weighted-average number of common shares 

outstanding used in  the computat ion was 
36,798,806 for the fiscal years ended March 31, 
2014 and 2013.
Diluted net income per share is not presented 

because potential common shares do not exist for 
the year ended March 31, 2013.  Diluted net loss 
per share is not presented because potential 
common shares do not exist and the result of 
operation is loss for the year ended March 31, 
2014.
Cash dividends per share presented in the 

accompanying statements of operation are 
dividends applicable to the respective fiscal years 
including dividends to be paid after the end of the 
year.

r.  Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - In 
December 2009, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement 
No. 24, "Accounting Standard for Accounting 
Changes and Error Corrections" and ASBJ Guidance 
No. 24, "Guidance on Accounting Standard for 
Accounting Changes and Error Corrections."  
Accounting treatments under this standard and 
guidance are as follows:  (1) Changes in Accounting 
Policies - When a new accounting policy is applied 
following revision of an accounting standard, the 
new policy is applied retrospectively unless the 
revised accounting standard includes specific 
transitional provisions, in which case the entity shall 
comply with the specific transitional provisions.  (2) 
Changes in Presentation - When the presentation of 
financial statements is changed, prior-period 
financial statements are reclassified in accordance 
with the new presentation.  (3) Changes in 
Accounting Estimates - A change in an accounting 
estimate is accounted for in the period of the 
change if the change affects that period only, and is 
accounted for prospectively if the change affects 
both the period of the change and future periods.  
(4) Corrections of Prior-Period Errors - When an 
error in prior-period financial statements is 

discovered, those statements are restated. 

s.  New Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits - On 
May 17, 2012, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 
26, "Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits" 
and ASBJ Guidance No.  25,  "Guidance on 
Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits," which 
replaced the Accounting Standard for Retirement 
Benefits that had been issued by the Business 
Accounting Council in 1998 with an effective date 
of April 1, 2000, and the other related practical 
gu i dance ,  and  we re  f o l l owed  by  pa r t i a l  
amendments from time to time through 2009. 

Major changes are as follows:
(a) Treatment in the balance sheet
Under the current requirements, actuarial gains 
and losses and past service costs that are yet to 
be recognized in profit or loss are not recognized 
in the balance sheet, and the difference between 
retirement benefit obligations and plan assets 
(hereinafter, "deficit or surplus"), adjusted by 
such unrecognized amounts, is recognized as a 
liability or asset.
Under the revised accounting standard, 
actuarial gains and losses and past service costs 
that are yet to be recognized in profit or loss 
shall be recognized within equity (accumulated 
other comprehensive income), after adjusting for 
tax effects, and any resulting deficit or surplus 
shall be recognized as a liability (liability for 
retirement benefits) or asset (asset for retirement 
benefits).

(b) Treatment in the statement of operations and
the statement of comprehensive income
The revised accounting standard does not 
change how to recognize actuarial gains and 
losses and past service costs in profit or loss.  
Those amounts would be recognized in profit or 
loss over a certain period no longer than the 
expected average remaining service period of the 
employees.  However, actuarial gains and losses 
and past service costs that arose in the current 
period and have not yet been recognized in 
profit  or  loss  shal l  be inc luded in  other  
comprehensive income and actuarial gains and 
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Investment securities as of March 31, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following:

3.INVESTMENT SECURITIES

losses and past  serv ice costs that  were 
recognized in other comprehensive income in 
prior periods and then recognized in profit or 
loss in the current period shall be treated as 
reclassification adjustments.

(c) Amendments relating to the method of 
attributing expected benefit to periods and 
relating to the discount rate and expected future 
salary increases
The revised accounting standard also made 
certain amendments relating to the method of 
attributing expected benefit to periods and 
relating to the discount rate and expected future 
salary increases.

(d) Treatment in nonconsolidated financial 
statements
In nonconsolidated financial statements, the new 
requirements for (a) and (b) above would not be 
applied, with the current requirements remaining 
applicable.

This accounting standard and the guidance for (a) 
and (b) above are effective for the end of annual 
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2013, and for 
(c) above are effective for the beginning of annual 
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014, or for 
the beginning of annual periods beginning on or 
after April 1, 2015, subject to certain disclosure in 
March 2015, both with earlier application being 
permitted from the beginning of annual periods 
beginning on or after April 1, 2013.  However, no 
retrospective application of this accounting 
standard to consolidated financial statements in 
prior periods is required.
The Company applied the revised accounting 
standard for (a) and (b) above effective March 31, 
2014, and expects to apply (c) above from April 1, 
2014, and is in the process of measuring the effects 
of applying the revised accounting standard for (c) 
above in future applicable periods.

Non-current:
Marketable equity securities:
Kobe Steel, Ltd., a principal shareholder
Other

Non-marketable equity securities
Total

¥    85
186
4

¥  275

$      825
1,806
39

$  2,670

¥    68
182
4

¥  254

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

Inventories as of March 31, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following:

4.INVENTORIES

Short-term bank loans at March 31, 2014 and 2013 consisted of notes to banks, bank overdrafts and current portion 
of long-term debt.  The weighted-average interest rate of short-term loans at March 31, 2014 and 2013 
was 0.5% and 0.6%, respectively.

Long-term debt as of March 31, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following:

5.SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Finished products
Work in process
Raw materials and supplies
Total

¥    14,611
5,498
5,326

¥  25,435

$  141,854
53,379
51,709

$  246,942

¥    12,788
5,198
9,778

¥  27,764

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Loans from banks due serially to 2016 fiscal year with 
interest rates ranging from 0.3% to 1.7% (2014 and 2013):
Collateralized
Unsecured

Less current portion
Long-term debt, net

¥    7,000
48,000
10,000

¥  45,000

$    67,961
466,019
97,087

$  436,893

¥    7,000
48,950
19,450

¥  36,500

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

The costs and aggregate fair values of investment securities as of March 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Cost Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
Losses

Fair 
Value

Securities classified as: 
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities

Securities classified as: 
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities

¥  160 ¥  271¥  111

Securities classified as: 
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities

Cost Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
Losses

Fair 
Value

¥  139 ¥  250¥  111

Cost
Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
Losses

Fair 
Value

$  1,553 $  2,631$  1,078

2014 Millions of Yen

2014 Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2013 Millions of Yen
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Employees of the Company are covered by a defined benefit pension plan, a defined contribution pension plan, 
and a severance lump-sum payment plan.
 
The liability for employees' retirement benefits as of March 31, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following:
(1)The changes in defined benefit obligation for the year ended March 31, 2014, were as follows:

(2)The changes in plan assets for the year ended March 31, 2014, were as follows:

6.LIABILITY FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

On July 31, 2009, the Company entered into a ¥10,000 million ($97,087 thousand) long-term syndicate loan 
agreement with banks.  This agreement contains the following financial covenants relating to the financial position and 
operating results of the Company:  the amount of net assets at the end of each fiscal year shall not be less than 
¥35,500 million ($344,660 thousand) or shall not be less than 75% of net assets of the latest financial year, whichever 
is greater, and the Company shall not record a loss from ordinary operations for two consecutive years.
On December 31, 2013, the Company entered into a ¥18,000 million ($174,757 thousand) long-term syndicate loan 
agreement with banks.  This agreement contains the following financial covenants relating to the financial position and 
operating results of the Company:  the amount of net assets at the end of each fiscal year shall not be less than 
¥33,100 million ($321,359 thousand) or shall not be less than 75% of net assets of the latest financial year, whichever 
is greater, and the Company shall not record a net cash used in operating activities for two consecutive years.

Annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2014 were as follows:

Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid

Balance at end of year

$  (38,602)
(2,505)
(543)
1,922
1,311

$  (38,417)

¥   (3,976)
(258)
(56)
198
135

¥  (3,957)

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Year Ending March 31
2016
2017
2019
Total

$  184,466
184,466
67,961

$  436,893

¥   19,000
19,000
7,000

¥  45,000

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Trade accounts $  91,786¥  9,454
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Balance at beginning of year
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial losses
Contributions from the employer
Benefits paid

Balance at end of year

$  24,029
330
1,709
1,408
(699)

$  26,777

¥   2,475
34
176
145
(72)

¥  2,758

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for long-term debt of ¥7,000 million ($67,961 thousand) as of 
March 31, 2014, were as follows:
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Recognized actuarial losses
Amortization of prior service cost
Net periodic benefit costs

(4)The components of net periodic benefit costs for the year ended March 31, 2014, were as follows: 

(5)Plan assets as of March 31, 2014
a.Components of plan assets
Plan assets consisted of the following:

b.Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the long-term rates of return that 
are expected currently and in the future from the various components of the plan assets.

$      2,505
 543

(330)
 641
 117
$      3,476

¥        258
 56

(34)
 66
 12
¥        358

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Debt investments
Equity investments
General accounts
Others
Total

28.6%
33.0
33.2
5.2

100.0%

(3)Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the balances of defined benefit 
obligation and plan assets as of March 31, 2014

Liability for retirement benefits
Asset for retirement benefits
Net liability for defined benefit obligation

$  14,990
(7,611)

$    7,379

¥   1,544
(784)

¥      760

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Funded defined benefit obligation
Plan assets

Unfunded defined benefit obligation

Unrecognized actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service cost
Net liability for defined benefit obligation

$  20,262
(26,777)
(6,515)
18,155
11,640
(2,961)
(1,300)
$  7,379

¥   2,087
(2,758)
(671)
1,870
1,199
(305)
(134)

¥      760

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
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The changes in asset retirement obligations for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

7.ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized actuarial loss
Prepaid pension cost
Net liability 

(6)Assumptions used for the year ended March 31, 2014, were set forth as follows: 

(7)Defined contribution pension plan
Cost recognized for the defined contribution pension plan for the year ended March 31, 2014 
was ¥55 million ($534 thousand).

The liability for employees' retirement benefits as of March 31, 2013 consisted of the following:

The components of net periodic benefit costs are as follows:

Assumptions used for the year ended March 31, 2013 are set forth as follows:

Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets

1.4%
1.4%

¥  (3,976)
2,475
146
744
(806)

¥  (1,417)

Millions of Yen

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Recognized actuarial loss
Other
Net periodic benefit costs

¥  221
70
(44)
12
56
28

¥  343

Millions of Yen

Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Amortization period of prior service cost
Recognition period of actuarial gain/loss

1.4%
2.0%

17 years
17 years

Balance at beginning of year
Reconciliation associated with passage of time
Balance at end of year

¥    1,246
27

¥    1,273

$  12,097
262

$  12,359

¥    1,220
26

¥    1,246

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the "Companies Act").  The significant provisions 
in the Companies Act that affect financial and accounting matters are summarized below:

8.EQUITY

capital surplus) depending on the equity account 
charged upon the payment of such dividends until 
the total of aggregate amount of legal reserve and 
additional paid- in capital equals 25% of the 
common stock.  Under the Companies Act, the 
total amount of additional paid-in capital and legal 
reserve may be reversed without limitation.  The 
Companies Act also provides that common stock, 
legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other 
capital surplus and retained earnings can be 
transferred among the accounts under certain 
conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.

(c) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition
     rights
The Companies Act also provides for companies 
to purchase treasury stock and dispose of such 
treasury stock by resolution of the board of 
d i rec to rs .   The amount  o f  t reasu r y  s tock  
purchased cannot exceed the amount available 
for d ist r ibut ion to the shareholders that is 
determined by specific formula.
Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition 

r i g h t s  a re  now p re sen ted  a s  a  s epa ra te  
component of equity.
 The Compan ies  Ac t  a l so  p rov ides  tha t  

companies can purchase both treasury stock 
acquisit ion rights and treasury stock.  Such 
treasury stock acquisition rights are presented as 
a separate component of equity or deducted 
directly from stock acquisition rights.

(a) Dividends
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay 
dividends at any time during the fiscal year in 
addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution 
at the shareholders' meeting.  For companies that 
meet certain criteria such as (1) having a board of 
directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) 
having an audit and supervisory board, and (4) the 
term of service of the directors is prescribed as 
one year rather than two years of normal term by 
its articles of incorporation, the board of directors 
may declare dividends (except for dividends in 
kind) at any time during the fiscal year if the 
company has prescribed so in its articles of 
incorporation.  The Company meets all the above 
criteria.
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid 

once a year upon resolution by the board of 
directors if the articles of incorporation of the 
company so st ipulate.  The Companies Act 
provides certain l imitations on the amounts 
available for dividends or the purchase of treasury 
stock.  The limitation is defined as the amount 
available for distribution to the shareholders, but 
the amount of net assets after dividends must be 
maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

(b) Increases/decreases and transfer of common
     stock, reserve and surplus
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal 
to 10% of dividends must be appropriated as a 
legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) 
or as additional paid-in capital (a component of 
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20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Deferred tax assets (current):
Accrued bonus
Provision for loss on practice of purchase commitments
Provision for business restructuring expenses
Social insurance 
Loss on revaluation of inventories
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting
Other

Net deferred tax assets (current)

Deferred tax assets (non-current):
Loss on revaluation of golf club membership
Liability for retirement benefits
Provision for business restructuring expenses
Depreciation
Asset retirement obligations
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting
Impairment loss
Other
Less valuation allowance

Total

Deferred tax liabilities (non-current):
Property, plant and equipment (asset retirement
 obligations)
Prepaid pension cost
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Reserve for advanced depreciation of fixed assets

Total
Net deferred tax assets (non-current)

The Company is subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in 
a normal effective statutory tax rate of approximately 38% for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.
The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 
March 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

$      1,223
1,214
534
184
7,563
136
962

$      11,816

$         369
5,340
2,243
3,456
4,398
155
5,155
602

(8,165)
$      13,553

 
2,553
2,709
553
175
5,990

$      7,563

¥       126
125
55
19
779
14
99

¥       1,217

¥         38
550
231
356
453
16
531
62

(841)
¥       1,396

 
263
279
57
18
617

¥       779

¥       138

20
75
35
237

¥       505

¥         38
504

586
444
46

45
(499)

¥       1,164

 
277
287
50
55
669

¥       495

9.INCOME TAXES
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

New tax reform laws enacted in 2014 in Japan changed the normal effective statutory tax rate for the fiscal year 
beginning on or after April 1, 2014, from approximately 38% to 35.6%.  The effect of this change was to decrease 
deferred tax assets in the balance sheet as of March 31, 2014, by ¥81 million ($786 thousand) and to increase 
income taxes - deferred in the statement of operations for the year then ended by ¥81 million ($786 thousand).

Business restructuring expenses were mainly incurred with the closing of the Amagasaki plant and Kishiwada plant, 
which include loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment; impairment loss on long-lived assets; gain on sales 
of property, plant and equipment and other costs including costs for removing property, plant and equipment.
The details of business restructuring expenses for the year ended March 31, 2014 were as follows:

Normal effective statutory tax rate
Change in valuation allowance for deferred tax assets
Tax credit for research and development costs
Difference incurred from changes of tax rate
Other - net
Actual effective tax rate

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the 
accompanying statement of operations for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, is as follows:

38.0%
11.8
(5.5)

0.2
44.5%

38.0%
(8.7)

(2.1)
(1.1)
26.1%

11.BUSINESS RESTRUCTURING EXPENSES

Research and development costs charged to income were ¥781 million ($7,583 thousand) and ¥688 million for 
the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(1)Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(2)Impairment loss on long-lived assets

10.RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on long-lived assets
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment
Other costs including costs for removing property, 
 plant and equipment

$  19,078
14,476
(4,748)

9,602

¥   1,965
1,491
(489)

989

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Other
Total

$    1,117
14,942
2,932
87

$  19,078

¥      115
1,539
302
9

¥   1,965

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Titanium Business Division Buildings and structures, machinery and equipment, 
construction in progress and other

Buildings and structures, machinery and equipment, 
construction in progress and other

Buildings and structures, land and other

Amagasaki City, Hyogo

Amagasaki City, HyogoHigh-Performance Materials 
Business Division
Idle assets Kishiwada City, Osaka

Type of assetsLocationUse

20132014
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The Company decides its asset groups for impairment by the following method.  Asset groups of operating assets 
are decided by business division and asset groups of idle assets are decided by individual asset.
The carrying amount of long-lived assets in the Titanium Business Division and High-Performance Materials Business 
Division were written down to the recoverable amount for the year ended March 31, 2014 because they were not 
expected to improve the deterioration in the sales environment and the decrease in capacity utilization of 
manufacturing facilities in those businesses.
The carrying amounts of idle assets were written down to the recoverable amount for the year ended March 31, 
2014 because they are expected to be used in the future.
Impairment loss on long-lived assets is as follows:

The recoverable amount of operating assets was measured by the value in use and estimated cash flows 
calculated by the recoverable amount were discounted by 4.81%.
The recoverable amount of idle assets was measured by the net sales value.  The net sales value was 
determined by rationally adjusting appraised values.

(3)Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment of ¥489 million ($4,748 thousand) consisted of gain on sales of 
machinery and equipment to Nippon Steel & Sumikin Naoetsu Titanium Co., LTD. 

The Company leases certain machinery, automotive equipment and other equipment.
Finance leases that are deemed to transfer ownership of the leased property to the Company are included in 
"Machinery and equipment" in the balance sheet as of March 31, 2014 and 2013.
Total rental expenses for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 were ¥622 million ($6,039 thousand) and 
¥615 million, respectively.
The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases were as follows:

The rental payments over the estimated useful period of land leases for which asset retirement obligations are 
recognized are included in the minimum rental commitments (see Note 2.m).  
Land leases for which asset retirement obligations are recognized are legally cancellable.  However, as they are 
unlikely to be cancelled due to the indispensable nature of the asset for the Company's business activities, they are 
considered substantially noncancelable leases and therefore, the amount of the asset retirement obligations is 
included in the above minimum rental commitments.

12.LEASES

Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment
Land
Construction in progress
Other
Total

$    5,825
3,621
2,320
1,971
739

$  14,476

¥      600
373
239
203
76

¥   1,491

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Due within one year
Due after one year
Total

¥         88
1,651

¥    1,739

$       854
16,029

$  16,883

¥        89
1,739

¥   1,828

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd., a principal shareholder and Nippon Steel Corporation merged into Nippon Steel & 
Sumitomo Metal Corporation as of October 1, 2012.  The dealings after the merger were taken over by Nippon Steel 
& Sumitomo Metal Corporation.  The transaction amount with Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd. before the merger 
(from April 1, 2012 to September 30, 2012) was ¥619 million.

13.COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Related party transactions are summarized below:

14.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As of March 31, 2014, the Company had the following contingent liabilities:
(1)Guarantees of bank loans for employees

(2)Purchase commitments of raw materials
At March 31, 2014, the Company had some noncancelable purchase commitments of raw materials.
The Company has some forward contracts for purchase of raw materials.  There is a potential loss to the 
Company depending on the circumstances of resale to a third party from contractors in the case that unpurchased 
raw materials remain at the end of the contract period. 
The off-balance amount of raw materials that had not been purchased by the Company as of March 31, 2014 
was as follows:

Guarantees of bank loans of employees $      2,718¥       280
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Off-balance amount of raw materials that had not been 
purchased by the Company $    13,117¥    1,351

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Nippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Corporation,
 a principal shareholder:
Net sales
Accounts receivable

Nippon Steel & Sumikin Naoetsu Titanium Co, LTD.,
 a sister company:
Sales amounts of property, plant and equipment
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment
Accounts receivable - other

¥         841
377

¥         900
489
945

$       8,165
3,664

$       8,738
4,748
9,175

¥        494
477

20132014
Millions of Yen Millions of Yen

2014
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
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(1) Policy for Financial Instruments
The Company uses financial instruments, mainly long-term debt including bank loans and lease obligations, based 
on its capital financing plan.  Cash surpluses, if any, are invested in low-risk financial assets.  Short-term bank loans 
are used to fund its ongoing operations.  Derivatives are used, not for speculative purposes, but to manage 
exposure to financial risks as described in (2) below.

(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
Receivables such as trade notes and trade accounts are exposed to customer credit risk.  Although receivables in 
foreign currencies are exposed to the market risk of fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates, the position, 
net of payables in foreign currencies, is hedged by using forward foreign currency contracts.  Investment securities, 
mainly equity securities of customers and suppliers of the Company, are exposed to the risk of market price 
fluctuations.
Payment terms of payables, such as trade notes and trade accounts, are less than one year.  Although payables 
in foreign currencies are exposed to the market risk of fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates, those risks 
are netted against the balance of receivables denominated in the same foreign currency as noted above.
Maturities of bank loans and lease obligations are less than five years after the balance sheet date.  Although a 
part of such bank loans and lease obligations is exposed to market risks from changes in variable interest rates, 
those risks are mitigated by using interest-rate swaps.
Derivatives mainly include forward foreign currency contracts and interest-rate swaps, which are used to manage 
exposure to market risks from changes in foreign currency exchange rates of receivables and payables, and from 
changes in interest rates of bank loans.  Please see Note 16 for more details about derivatives.

(3) Risk Management for Financial Instruments
Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk of economic loss arising from a counterparty's failure to repay or service debt according to 
the contractual terms.  The Company manages its credit risk from receivables on the basis of internal guidelines, 
which include monitoring of payment terms and balances of major customers by each business administration 
department to identify the default risk of customers at an early stage. 
The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is limited to their carrying amounts as of March 31, 2014.

Market risk management (foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk)
Foreign currency trade receivables and payables are exposed to market risk resulting from fluctuations in foreign 
currency exchange rates.  Such foreign exchange risk is hedged principally by forward foreign currency contracts.  
In addition, when foreign currency trade receivables and payables are expected from forecasted transactions, 
forward foreign currency contracts may be used under the limited contract term of half a year.
Interest-rate swaps are used to manage exposure to market risks from changes in interest rates of bank loans.
Investment securities are managed by monitoring market values and the financial position of issuers on a regular 
basis.
Basic principles of derivative transactions have been approved at management meetings held on a semiannual 
basis based on the internal guidelines that prescribe the authority and the limit for each transaction by the 
corporate treasury department.  Reconciliation of the transactions and balances with customers is made, and the 
transaction data is reported to the chief financial officer and the management meeting on a monthly basis.

(4) Fair Values of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in active markets.  If quoted prices are not 
available, other rational valuation techniques are used instead.  Also please see Note 16 for the detail of fair 
values for derivatives.

15.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

(a) Fair value of financial instruments

March 31, 2013
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Gain/Loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - trade accounts
Investment securities
Total
Payables - trade accounts
Short-term bank loans
Payables - construction
Long-term debt
Lease obligations
Derivatives
Total

¥         44
6

¥         50

Millions of Yen

¥      3,422
19,359
250

¥    23,031
¥      6,511

12,900
704

55,994
1,428
214

¥    77,751

March 31, 2014
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Gain/Loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - trade accounts
Investment securities
Total
Payables - trade accounts
Short-term bank loans
Payables - construction
Long-term debt
Derivatives
Total

¥         929
14,617
271

¥    15,817
¥      2,910

4,300
1,168
55,000

86
¥    63,464

¥         60

¥         60

Millions of Yen

¥         929
14,617
271

¥    15,817
¥      2,910

4,300
1,168
54,940

86
¥    63,404

March 31, 2014
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Gain/Loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - trade accounts
Investment securities
Total
Payables - trade accounts
Short-term bank loans
Payables - construction
Long-term debt
Derivatives
Total

$      9,019
141,913
2,631

$  153,563
$    28,252
41,748
11,340
533,980

835
$  616,155

$    582

$    582

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

$      9,019
141,913
2,631

$  153,563
$    28,252
41,748
11,340
533,398

835
$  615,573

¥      3,422
19,359
250

¥    23,031
¥      6,511

12,900
704

55,950
1,422
214

¥    77,701
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Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value because of their short maturities. 

Receivables and payables
The carrying values of receivables and payables approximate fair value because of their short maturities.
 
Investment securities
The fair values of investment securities are measured at the quoted market price of the stock exchange for the 
equity instruments, and at the quoted price obtained from the financial institution for certain debt instruments.  
Fair value information for marketable and investment securities by classification is included in Note 3.

Short-term bank loans, long-term debt and lease obligations
The fair values of short-term bank loans, long-term debt and lease obligations are determined by discounting 
the cash flows related to the debt at the Company's assumed corporate borrowing rate.

Derivatives
Fair value information for derivatives is included in Note 16.

(b)Financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined

March 31, 2014
Investments in equity instruments that do not
 have a quoted market price in an active market $     39 ¥      4

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Carrying Amount

March 31, 2013
Investments in equity instruments that do not
 have a quoted market price in an active market  ¥      4

Millions of Yen

Carrying Amount

March 31, 2014
Due in One
Year or Less

Due after One Year
through Five Years

Due after Five Years
through Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - trade accounts
Total

¥       929
14,617

¥  15,546

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2013
Due in One
Year or Less

Due after One Year
through Five Years

Due after Five Years
through Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables - trade accounts
Total

¥    3,422
19,359

¥  22,781

Millions of Yen

(5) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Securities with Contractual Maturities

Please see Note 5 for annual maturities of long-term debt.

March 31, 2014
Due in One
Year or Less

Due after One Year
through Five Years

Due after Five Years
through Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables - trade accounts
Total

$     9,019
141,913
$ 150,932

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

Millions of Yen

The above foreign currency forward contracts that qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific matching 
criteria are not remeasured at market value because trade receivables settled by forward exchange contracts are 
translated at the contract rates.  In addition, the fair value of such foreign currency forward contracts in Note 15 is 
included in that of hedged items (i.e., receivables - trade accounts). 
The fair value of derivative transactions is measured at the quoted price obtained from the financial institution.
The contract or notional amounts of derivatives that are shown in the above table do not represent the amounts 
exchanged by the parties and do not measure the Company's exposure to credit or market risk.

At March 31, 2014
Hedged
Item

Contract 
Amount

Contract Amount
Due after One Year

Fair
Value

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling U.S.$

Interest-rate swaps (fixed rate payment,
floating rate receipt)

Receivables

Long-term debt ¥      86

¥    4,693

17,000 ¥    7,000

Millions of Yen

At March 31, 2013
Hedged
Item

Contract 
Amount

Contract Amount
Due after One Year

Fair
Value

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling U.S.$

Interest-rate swaps (fixed rate payment,
floating rate receipt)

Receivables

Long-term debt ¥    214

¥    2,475

21,950 ¥  10,000

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

At March 31, 2014
Hedged
Item

Contract 
Amount

Contract Amount
Due after One Year

Fair
Value

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling U.S.$

Interest-rate swaps (fixed rate payment,
floating rate receipt)

Receivables

Long-term debt $    835

$    45,563

165,049 $  67,961

The Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign exchange risk associated with 
certain assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.  The Company also enters into interest-rate swap 
contracts to manage its interest rate exposures on certain liabilities.
All derivative transactions are entered into to hedge interest and foreign currency exposures incorporated within 
its business.  Accordingly, market risk in these derivatives is basically offset by opposite movements in the value of 
hedged assets or liabilities.
Because the counterparties to these derivatives are limited to major international financial institutions, the 
Company does not anticipate any losses arising from credit risk.
Derivative transactions entered into by the Company have been made in accordance with internal policies that 
regulate the authorization and credit limit amount.

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied

16.DERIVATIVES
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Under ASBJ Statement No. 17 "Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures" and ASBJ Guidance No. 
20 "Guidance on Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures," an entity is required to report 
financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments.  Reportable segments are operating segments 
or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified criteria.  Operating segments are components of an 
entity about which separate financial information is available and such information is evaluated regularly by the 
chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.  Generally, 
segment information is required to be reported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating operating 
segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.
 
1.Description of reportable segments
The Company's reportable segments are those for which separate financial information is available and regular 
evaluation by the Company's management is being performed in order to decide how resources are allocated 
among the Company.  Therefore, the Company's reportable segments consist of the Titanium Business Division, 
Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division and High-Performance Materials Business Division.

Titanium Business Division - Production and sales of mainly titanium sponges and titanium ingots
Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division - Production and sales of polycrystalline silicon
High-Performance Materials Business Division - Production and sales of mainly high-purity titanium, titanium 
powder and silicon monoxide

2.Methods of measurement for the amounts of sales, profit (loss), assets and other items for each reportable segment
The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with those disclosed in Note 2, "Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies."

17.SEGMENT INFORMATION
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

Titanium Business
Division Total

Reportable Segment
Polycrystalline 
Silicon Business
Division

High-performance 
Materials Business

Division TotalReconciliations

Titanium Business
Division Total

Polycrystalline 
Silicon Business
Division

High-performance 
Materials Business

Division TotalReconciliations

Sales:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales or transfers

Total
Segment (loss) profit
Segment assets
Other:
Depreciation
Increase in property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets

¥  24,823

¥  24,823
¥  (610)
60,956

5,223

2,216

¥  16,289

¥  16,289
¥    1,862
45,630

3,567

82

¥   1,797

¥   1,797
¥       (70)
2,706

253

32

¥  42,909

¥  42,909
¥    1,182
109,292

9,043

2,330

¥   929

 
489

¥  42,909

¥  42,909
¥    1,182
110,221

9,043

2,819

¥  34,637

¥  34,637
¥    1,884
67,075

6,104

1,907

¥  19,269

¥  19,269
¥    2,226
54,537

6,934

475

¥   1,970

¥   1,970
¥         (1)
3,073

182

861

¥  55,876

¥  55,876
¥   4,109
124,685

13,220

3,243

¥   2,764

 
1,351

¥  55,876

¥  55,876
¥    4,109
127,449

13,220

4,594

Titanium Business
Division Total

Reportable Segment
Polycrystalline 
Silicon Business
Division

High-performance 
Materials Business

Division TotalReconciliations
Sales:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales or transfers

Total
Segment (loss) profit
Segment assets
Other:
Depreciation
Increase in property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets

Reportable Segment

Sales:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales or transfers

Total
Segment (loss) profit
Segment assets
Other:
Depreciation
Increase in property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets

$ 241,000

$ 241,000
$    (5,922)
591,805

50,709

21,514

$ 158,145

$ 158,145
$   18,078
443,010

34,631

796

$  17,447

$  17,447
$      (680)
26,272

2,456

311

$ 416,592

$ 416,592
$   11,476
1,061,087

87,796

22,621

$  9,020

4,748

$ 416,592

$ 416,592
$   11,476
1,070,107

87,796

27,369

3.Information about sales, profit (loss), assets and other items is as follows.

2014 Millions of Yen

2014 Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2013 Millions of Yen
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Millions of YenSales
　Name of Customers

SUMITOMO CORPORATION

SUMCO Corporation
Shinsho Corporation

Related Segment

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Millions of Yen2014

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

20132014

4.Information about geographical areas
(1) Sales

5.Information about major customers

The Company did not recognize any impairment losses for the year ended March 31, 2013.

Note:  Sales are classified by counties based on the location of customers.

The amount of sales to Shinsho Corporation for the year ended March 31, 2014 is not disclosed since it did not 
exceed 10% or more of total sales of the Company.

Total
¥  42,909

Total
$ 416,592

Other
¥   6,222

Other
$ 60,408

U.S.A.
¥  12,469

U.S.A.
$ 121,058

Japan
¥  24,218

Japan
$  235,126

Titanium Business Division, Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division and 
High-performance Materials Business Division

Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division

Titanium Business Division and High-performance Materials Business Division

¥  17,883

8,700

¥  26,063
 
15,431
6,003

Sales
　Name of Customers

SUMITOMO CORPORATION

SUMCO Corporation
Shinsho Corporation

Related Segment

Titanium Business Division, Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division and 
High-performance Materials Business Division

Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division

Titanium Business Division and High-performance Materials Business Division

$  173,883
 
84,466

Notes:*The amounts included under "Reconciliations" are as follows.
(1)"Reconciliations" of "Segment assets" represent corporate assets.
(2)"Reconciliations" of "Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets" represent amount of capital investment in common 
division.

**"Segment profit (loss)" represents operating income (loss) in the statement of operations.
***The Company changed the depreciation method for property, plant and equipment acquired on or after April 1, 2012, due to the revision 
of Japanese Corporation Tax Law and its regulation.  The effect of this adoption was to increase segment profit of the "Titanium Business 
Division" by ¥69 million, to increase segment profit of the "Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division" by ¥33 million, and to decrease segment 
loss of the "High-Performance Materials Business Division" by ¥19 million for the year ended March 31, 2013.

****As discussed in Note 2.e, the Company changed the estimated useful life of polycrystalline silicon manufacturing facilities (machinery and 
equipment) from seven years to 12 years as a result of reassessing the physical useful life of the entire manufacturing facilities as part of the 
large-scale investment to increase the production capacity of the factory in Kishiwada.  The new estimated useful life of machinery and 
equipment was prospectively applied.  The effect of this adoption was to increase segment profit of the "Polycrystalline Silicon Business 
Division" by ¥1,599 million ($15,524 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2014.

*****For the year ended March 31, 2014, the Company recognized impairment loss on long-lived assets.  The amounts of impairment loss on 
long-lived assets in each segment are as follows:

Total
¥  55,876

Other
¥   9,575

U.S.A.
¥  13,351

Japan
¥  32,950

2013

2014

2014

Titanium Business Division
Polycrystalline Silicon Business Division
Idle assets
Total

$    5,223
2,019
7,234

$  14,476

¥      538
208
745

¥   1,491

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
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Year Ended March 31, 2014

Notes to
Financial Statements

Appropriation of Retained Earnings
The following appropriation of retained earnings as of March 31, 2014 was approved at the board of directors held 
on May 15, 2014:

18.SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Year-end cash dividends, ¥5 ($0.05) per share $  1,786¥     184
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of OSAKA Titanium technologies Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of OSAKA Titanium technologies Co., Ltd. as of March 31, 2014, and the related 

statements of operations, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 

and other explanatory information, all expressed in Japanese yen.  

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 

of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance 

with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 

entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of OSAKA 

Titanium technologies Co., Ltd. as of March 31, 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 2.e to the financial statements, OSAKA Titanium technologies Co., Ltd. changed the estimated useful life of 

polycrystalline silicon manufacturing facilities (machinery and equipment) from seven years to 12 years from the year ended March 31, 

2014.

Our option is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Convenience Translation
Our audit also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation 

has been made in accordance with the basis stated in Note 1 to the financial statements.  Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented 

solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

June 10, 2014
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 (as of March 31, 2014)

Stock Information

Securities Code:5726 

Agent for the Management of Shareholders’ Register and Special Accounts:
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
1-4-1, Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Shareholder Registry Administrator:
5-33, Kitahama 4-chome, Chuo-ku, Osaka

Agent’s Business Location:
Stock Transfer Agency Business Planning Department
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

(Mailing address)
Stock Transfer Agency Business Planning Department
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
2-8-4 Izumi, Suginami-ku, Tokyo 168-0063 

(Telephone Inquiries)
0120-782-031 (Toll free, only available when calling within Japan)

Market Listings: 
Tokyo Stock Exchange, 1st section

(Thousands of Shares)

Total shares issuable (Shares):
Shares outstanding (Shares):
Trading unit (Shares):
Number of shareholders:

125,760,000
36,800,000

100
24,665

Items Pertaining to Shares

Shares Held
(Thousands of Shares)Names of Entity Ratio of Shares Held to

Total Shares Outstanding (%)

Total

8,800
8,800
864
354
285
238
238
234
221
209

20,246

Nippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Corporation
Kobe Steel, Ltd.
Sumitomo Corporation
Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account)
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account)
Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account No. 5)
Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account No. 6)
Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account No. 3)
Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account No. 2)
Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account No. 1)

23.91
23.91
2.35
0.96
0.77
0.65
0.65
0.64
0.60
0.57
55.02

(Note) The shareholding ratio was calculated after deducting 1,194 treasury stocks from the total number of shares outstanding.

Major Shareholders

Shareholders and Shares

Other domestic corporations:
18,984
51.58％

Financial institutions: 2,142  5.82％

Individuals and others:
13,196
35.85％

Foreign entities: 1,979
5.37％

Securities firms: 498 1.35％

Distribution of 
Stock by Owner
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 (as of March 31, 2014)

Corporate Data

OSAKA Titanium technologies Co.,Ltd.
November 26, 1952
8,739,620,000 yen
752
Yuichi Seki   President & Representative Director
Headquarters/Amagasaki Plant
1 Higashihama-cho, Amagasaki, Hyogo 
660-8533, Japan
Tel. +81-6-6413-9911 Fax. 81-6-6413-4343

Kishiwada Works
3-2, Kishinoura-cho, Kishiwada, Osaka 
596-0016, Japan
Tel. +81-72-479-3010 FAX. +81-72-479-3050

Tokyo Office
Shimbashi Sumitomo Building 6th floor, 5-11-3 
Shimbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-0004, Japan
Tel. +81-3-5776-3102 Fax. +81-3-5776-3111

Established as Osaka Special Steel Manufacturing
Incorporated as Osaka Special Steel Manufacturing Co.
Commenced research into manufacture of titanium metal

Equity stake taken by Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd.
Changed the trade name to Osaka Titanium Co., Ltd.
Equity stake taken by Kobe Steel, Ltd.
Construction completed for titanium sponge plant with monthly 
capacity of 25 tons
Commenced polycrystalline silicon research and development
Started production of polycrystalline silicon
Completed the magnesium chloride electrolysis plant
Completed the first phase of the second electrolysis plant
Awarded the Okouchi Memorial Production Prize for titanium 
manufacturing technology
Completed 14 silos to hold raw materials for titanium
Completed 80,000 ampere electrolysis cell
Received MITI grant for unifying reduction and separation processes
Completed reduction/separation furnaces (unit weight: 2 tons)
Completed liquid chloride furnace
Commenced operation of reduction/separation furnaces
(unit weight: 5 tons) (U-furnaces)
Completed the new electrolysis cell (multi-polar cell method)
Completed the titanium ingot plant
Completed the new distillation plant
Completed the new titanium sponge plant and started production in 
the new products plant
Completed the first phase of the polycrystalline silicon plant
Merged with Kyushu Electronic Metal Co., Ltd.
Changed the company name to Sumitomo Sitix Corporation
Headquarters/Amagasaki Plant received ISO9002 certification
Established Sitix of Amagasaki, Inc., a 100% subsidiary of Sumitomo 
to Sumitomo Titanium Corporation
Changed the trade name to Sumitomo Sitix of Amagasaki after 
business of Amagasaki manufacturing and technology units (titanium, 
polycrystalline silicon, new products) was transferred from Sumitomo 
Sitix Corporation.
Received ISO14001 certification
Changed the trade name to Sumitomo Titanium Corporation
Completed capacity increase construction work at titanium sponge 

plant (increased annual production capacity from 15,000 tons to 
18,000 tons)
Listed on the 2nd section of Tokyo Stock Exchange
Received AS9000 certification
Transferred to ISO9001: 2000
Transferred from the 2nd section to the 1st section of Tokyo Stock 
Exchange
Increased annual production capacity for titanium sponge from 
8,000 tons to 24,000 tons
Increased annual production capacity for polycrystalline silicon from 
900 tons to 1,300 tons and started shipments
Changed the trade name to OSAKA Titanium technologies Co., Ltd.
Purchased industrial site in the city of Kishiwada, Osaka
Increased annual production capacity for titanium sponge from 
24,000 tons to 32,000 tons (based on actual production capacity of 
31,000 tons), increased annual production capacity for 
polycrystalline silicon from 1,300 tons to 1,400 tons
Commenced operations at the Kishiwada Works
Completed the titanium ingot plant at the Kishiwada Works, 
boosting annual production capacity from 7,000 tons to 10,000 tons
Completed the new polycrystalline silicon plant at the Kishiwada 
Works, boosting annual production capacity to 3,600 tons
Increased annual production capacity for titanium sponge from 
31,000 tons to 37,000 tons (based on actual production capacity)
Increased annual production capacity for titanium sponge from 
37,000 tons to 40,000 tons (based on actual production capacity)
Reached cumulative polycrystalline silicon production of 20,000 tons
Increased annual production capacity for polycrystalline silicon from 
3,600 tons to 3,900 tons
Reached cumulative titanium sponge production of 500,000 tons
Concentrated production at the Kishiwada Plant for the 
polycrystalline silicon business (annual production capacity modified 
to 3,000 tons)
Concentrated production at the Amagasaki Plant for the titanium 
melting business (annual production capacity modified to 6,000 
tons)

1937
1950
1951
1952

1953
1954

1957
1960
1961
1967

1975

1977

1978

1980
1981

1982

1984
1992
1993
1996
1997

1999
2002

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2011

2012

2013

2014

Company 
Established
Paid-up Capital
Employees
Representative
Location

Titanium Business
• Titanium Sponge
• Titanium Ingot
• Titanium Tetrachloride
• Titanium Tetrachloride Aqueous Solution

Polycrystalline Silicon Business
• Polycrystalline Silicon

High-performance Materials Business
• High-purity Titanium
• SiO
• TILOP
• Titanium Powder

Main Products

Corporate Profile

Key Events
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